MNR
7

North Little Rock Planning Commission
August 9, 2022 - Agenda Meeting / Public Hearing 4:00 PM
City Council Chambers — 300 Main Street, NLR, AR 72114

Agenda Meeting: = Roll Call

= Reminder to speak into the microphone

Administrative: = Item 1 is postponed

Approval of Minutes: = June 14, 2022

Planning Commission Items:

1.

10.

Postponed - SD2022-43 UP Railroad SPR (SPR for a wastewater treatment facility located at 600
Pike Avenue) .

SD2022-45 AC Lewis, Lot 1 (Replat of 2 lots into a single lot and SPR to allow the construction of
an office at 702 N Palm St)

SD2022-46 Wal-Mart Commercial Addition, Lot 6 (SPR for a commercial bldg at 13101 Crystal
Hill Rd)

SD2022-47 Tulip Farms Addition, Lot 3 (Preliminary Plat & SPR for 3 buildings at 13701 HWY
70)

SD2022-48 East Broadway Addition, Lot 1 (SPR for a building at 3310 E Broadway)

SD2022-49 Wal-Mart Commercial Addition, Lot 11 (SPR for a new coffee shop at 11921 Maumelle
Blvd)

Special Use #2022-09 to allow a communications tower in a C3 zone located at 4500 W Commercial
Dr, NLR, AR

SD 2022-50 West Commercial Subdivision, Lot 7B, Block 2 (SPR for a communications tower at
4500 W Commercial Drive)

SD2022-51 Central Arkansas [-440 Business Park, Lot 7 (SPR for an addition to an existing building
located at 900 Fiber Optic Dr)

Conditional Use #2022-10 to allow an after school program in a C4 zone located at 5301
McClanahan Drive Suite B1

Public Comment / Adjournment:



NORTH LITTLE ROCK
r LR PLANNING COMMISSION
HEARING PROCEDURES
(1/1/2019)

Order of the Public Hearing: The regularly scheduled meeting is generally held on the second Tuesday of each
month at 4:00 PM in the City Council Chambers, 300 Main Street, North Little Rock, AR. All Planning
Commission hearings are open to the public. Typical hearings begin with a call of the role, approval of previous
hearings minutes, correspondence and staff reports, committee reports, unfinished business, new business, public
comments and adjournment, Public hearing items, zoning actions and special use request are typically the latter
half of the meeting and follow the development review items presented as summary recommendation from the
Development Review Committee.

Voting: There are nine Commissioners and a quorum consists of six members. In accordance with the
Commission’s current By-laws, all business must be approved by a minimum of five votes. A simple majority of
those members present does not approve a motion. “Robert’s Rules of Order” apply unless the Commission has
outlined alternative procedures.

Procedure to allow a person to address or approach the Board:

1. No person shall address the Planning Commission without first being recognized by the Chair.

2. All questions and remarks shall be made from the podium and addressed through the Chair.

3. After being recognized, each person shall state their name and address for the record.

N

. When a group of citizens are present to speak on an item, a spokesperson may be selected by the group to address
the Commission. If multiple individuals of the group desires to speak, the Chairman may limit each presentation
to three minutes.

5. Anyone from a group may also be recognized if they have new or additional information to add to an items
discussion. This additional presentation shall be limited to three minutes.

6. Individual (not representing a citizen group) presentations shall be limited to three minutes.
7. All remarks shall be addressed to the Planning Commission as a whole and not to any individual member.

8. No person other than members of the Planning Commission and the person having the floor shall be permitted
to enter into any discussion, either directly or through a member of the Planning Commission, without
permission of the Chair.

9. Once the question is called for or a public hearing is closed, no person in the audience shall address the Planning
Commission on the matter without first securing permission to do so by a majority vote of the Planning
Commission.

10. Anyone wishing to submit exhibits for the record shall provide the Secretary with a copy for each Planning
Commissioner, one copy for Staff to be placed in the permanent file, one copy for the Planning Director and
one copy for the Legal Eepartment.

11. Anyone wishing to read a statement into the record shall provide the Secretary with a written copy of the
statement.



North Little Rock Planning Commission
Meeting Summary
Regular Meeting
July 12, 2022

Chairman Clifton called the regular meeting of the North Little Rock Planning Commission to order at 4:00 PM
in the Council Chambers, City Hall.

Members Present:

Belasco

Chambers

Clifton, Chairman
Foster

Phillips

Pierce

Wallace

White, Vice-Chairman

Members Absent:

Banks

Staff Present:

Shawn Spencer, Director

Donna James, Assistant Director
Elaine Lee, City Attorney

Beau Cooper, Secretary

Administrative:

Mr. Chambers motioned to excuse any absent Commission members. Mr. White seconded the motion. All
members voted in favor of the motion and it was passed.

Chairman Clifton recognized Ms. Rene Pierce as the newest Commission member, representing Ward 4.
Items 6 and 11 were postponed.

Approval of Minutes:

A motion was made and seconded to approve the June 14, 2022, meeting minutes as submitted. Chairman Clifton
called for a motion to approve the minutes as submitted. Mr. Chambers made the motion. Mr. Wallace seconded
the motion. The Commission unanimously voted in favor of the motion.

Public Hearing:

Rezone #2022-22 Rezoning from R4 to C6 to allow a multi-family development located at 1120 Rockwater
Blvd - additional information was provided to the Commission 7/12/2022



Chairman Clifton reminded the audience the Planning Commission was only a recommending body and the
final decisions were made by the City Council. He asked the applicants to address the Commission on their
request.

Mr. Thomas Pownall of Thomas Engineering and Ms. Lisa Farrell of Shoreline LLC addressed the
Commission on the merits of the request. Mr. Pownall stated the request was to rezone an area of the site in
order to develop a multi-family complex. Ms. Farrell stated thus far, Shoreline LLC had converted an unused
plot of land on the riverfront and developed it into a very desirable residential neighborhood. She stated the
development company had the opportunity to acquire what was formerly the Recovery Centers of AR property
and develop it into a ‘gateway’ for the neighborhood. She stated they had the opportunity to meet with
residents of the neighborhood and present to them their plans for the development. She stated they had also
listened to their concerns. She noted one common comment the neighborhood provided was the desire for a
mixed use development in the area by bringing restaurants and retailers into the area. She stated the
development team had made some progress in this area and were hoping to continue. She stated another
concern of the neighbors was an increase in traffic in the area. She stated Shoreline had consulted with the
NLR City Engineer, who would be addressing the Commission regarding this issue. Another issue the
neighbors had brought up was the type of zoning they were requesting, which was C6. She stated this zoning
was chosen because it allowed a townhome feel with an interior courtyard opening onto Rockwater Blvd., but
some neighbors were concerned if the project was not finished or sold to another developer, then the C6
zoning would leave the property open to other types of undesirable development. Ms. Farrell stated Shoreline
LLC was very dedicated to this project and already had many things for the development in place such as
financing and planning and Shoreline hoped to begin groundbreaking soon.

Chairman Clifton asked if there was anyone in the audience who would like to address the Commission
regarding the application. Mr. Adam Day addressed the Commission, stating he was currently a resident of
the Rockwater neighborhood. He stated he had concerns with the proposed site plan and zoning, specifically
the potential for the site to be resold and developed in an undesirable fashion, if it were zoned C6. He stated
the current zoning allowed multi-family development and it would prevent eliminating the required buffer
from the R2 and Cé6.

Mr. White asked to hear Mr. Spencer’s thoughts on Mr. Day’s comments. Mr. Spencer stated Mr. Day was
correct the R4 allowed apartments but C6 allowed mixed use which would allow businesses and restaurants

to be built.

Mr. John Owens, former CEO of the NLR Chamber of Commerce and current resident of the Rockwater
neighborhood addressed the Commission. He stated he was in support of the project but he did have concerns
with an increase in traffic.

Mr. Chris Wilbourn, Engineer for the City of North Little Rock, addressed the Commission and spoke about
some of the traffic concerns. Mr. Wilbourn stated the roundabout was designed for an increase in traffic, but
in the decade since it was installed there had not been an increase in traffic. He continued with Engineering
had not seen an increase in traffic at any time of day for this area.

Mr. Chambers asked how many units would be built on the site and the height of the buildings. Mr. Pownall
answered there would be 360 units and they were 4 stories tall, being 64 feet at the highest point. Mr.
Chambers stated he had several conversations with residents concerning the proposed fence hindering the
walkability of the area and creating an unwelcome air. Mr. Chambers asked if the fences could be placed so
at least the two end buildings might be able to be used for future restaurant or retail spaces. Mr. Pownall stated
he agreed with the point and it was under discussion. Mr. Chambers asked why the need for C6 zoning instead
of R4. Ms. Farrell answered to maintain design and aesthetic consistency with the rest of the neighborhood,

2



the C6 zoning was required. She stated there would be a bike trail built to connect the property to the larger
bike trail going along Pike Ave and the type of fencing and landscaping used would increase the aesthetics of
the lot and make it a more pleasant area to walk-in. Mr. Chambers voiced concern with the idea he stated this
would be a very large lot which, would be fenced off, forcing pedestrian traffic to walk very far and around
the property. Ms. Farrell stated the proposal was very similar to Rockwater, which had not presented any
issues for pedestrians.

Mr. Day addressed the Commission again, stating his concerns regarding the zoning of the property from R4
to C6. He further stated his belief the property should remain within the confines of the urban grid to ensure
walkability. He also referred to other neighborhoods in the City which have overlay districts to protect the
homeowners from out of scale development.

Mr. Jimmy Moses with Moses Tucker addressed the Commission, stating the developers had carefully
considered the details of the plan with all involved in the project. He further stated Moses-Tucker had been
involved in other similar projects with the City and they were all successful projects, well-received, and did
not negatively impact the traffic in the neighborhoods. Mr. Moses assured the Commission they were
committed fully to the project and had no intention of backing out of their commitment to the City. He also
stated Mr. Day was an architect and former colleague of his and he was distressed to hear his statements,
stating as Mr. Day knows the difficulties faced when delivering a project this large. He stated they were
already well into their commitment to the project and ask the Commission place some trust into the project
based on commitments and successes of past projects. He stated there was already a gated apartment complex
in the Rockwater neighborhood which seemed to have integrated well. He further stated gating an apartment
complex was the new standard for almost all newly built urban complexes.

Mr. Chambers asked if this project required a buffer. Mr. Spencer answered screening was based on the use
not the zoning and this project would meet buffer requirements as based on ordinances.

Ms. Regina Celinger addressed the Commission as a Rockwater resident and as someone who helped her
parents move into The View apartments. Her concern was the originally proposed development for The View
did not match what was actually built and she had concerns with the project living up to its promises as well.

Chairman Clifton stated the City had been involved with this developer and their projects for nearly 15-years
and all could see their completed projects within the City. He further stated the City bought this property years
ago with the intent to develop and he believed the Commission should approve the project.

Mr. Foster stated he concurred with Mr. Clifton’s statement. He also stated he hoped the City could remain
committed to their upkeep of Riverfront Road.

Chairman Clifton asked for a roll call to vote.

Banks Belasco Yes Chambers No
Foster Yes Phillips Yes Pierce No
Wallace Yes White No Clifton Yes

Rezone 2022-22 was approved with (5) affirmative votes.

Chairman Clifton called for the review of item SD2022-42 Resorts at Rockwater Addition Lot 1R, Prel Plat
and SPR (Prel Plat and SPR for a new multi-family development located at 1120 Rockwater Blvd)



Chairman Clifton asked if anyone wanted speak concerning the proposed site plan.

Mr. Day stated he felt it was important to note a portion of the property was currently zoned R2 and no notice
was given concerning the R2 zoned property and the request to rezone this portion to C6.

There was a general discussion by the Commissioners, City Staff and the City Attorney concerning the portion
of the property which was requested to be rezoned to C6 from R2. The discussion was centered around no
notice or discussion was allowed to be presented regarding the request for the R2 rezoning. It was determined
the lot zoned R2 was included in the legal description released to the public and advertised in the legal notice
but was not included in the notice to the neighbors and the information provided to the Commission. The City
Attorney voiced her concern with the discussion not including the R2 zoning and felt the Commission should
hear any concerns from residents with regard to the rezoning of the R2 portion of the property to C6. She
stated a vote to expunge the previous vote was necessary, due to the small lot on the proposed site being zoned
R2, and allow for comment and discussion of the rezoning request. Mr. Chambers made a motion to expunge
the original vote. Mr. White seconded the motion.

Chairman Clifton asked for a roll call vote to expunge the original vote.

Banks Belasco Yes Chambers Yes
Foster Yes Phillips Yes Pierce Yes
Wallace Yes White Yes Clifton No

Expunging the original vote was approved with (7) affirmative votes.

Chairman Clifton requested anyone wanting to discuss the rezoning from R2 to C6 to address the Commission.
Ms. Farrell addressed the Commission and stated when Mr. Pownall made the request to the City, he did
include the R2 area. She stated the plat submitted also include the R2 zoned property and it was also included
in the information distributed to the public.

Mr. Edward Boye, of 1302 Rockwater Lane, addressed the Commission, speaking against rezoning the R2 to
C6. He stated the neighborhood in general was for the development but they did not want C6 zoning next to
R2.

Ms. Farrell stated to the Commission the developers had built other projects in the area, zoned C6, and had
seen their proposals and commitments through and they would do it again with this one.

Ms. Leah Charleton addressed the Commission, stating keeping the lot as R2 presents the perfect opportunity
for a buffer zone as the neighbors were asking. She also stated the neighbors were concerned for an old
magnolia tree on the property. She stated she lived in the Residences at Rockwater and felt the company had
not lived up to their promises, so she has trouble trusting them on this project.

Mr. Chambers made the motion to rezone the R2 and R4 zoning designations of the development to C6. Ms.
Belasco seconded the motion.

Chairman Clifton asked for a roll call to vote.

Banks Belasco Yes Chambers No
Foster Yes Phillips Yes Pierce No
Wallace Yes White No Clifton Yes

Rezone 2022-22 was approved with (5) affirmative votes.

SD2022-42 Resorts at Rockwater Addition Lot 1R, Prel Plat and SPR (Prel Plat and SPR for a new multi-
family development located at 1120 Rockwater Blvd)



. Engineering requirements on detention:

a.

Provide on-site stormwater detention as well as clear calculations showing that detention volume
is sufficient, or demonstrate to City Engineer that on-site detention is not required (based on
proposed development) by providing detention calculations showing pre and post site runoff
comparisons.

. Engineering requirements before the plat will be signed:

a.

b.

Provide street improvements on Pike Ave (street, drainage, curb and gutter, trail connection to
River trail, streetlights) as shown on Site Plan or a performance bond.
Repair River Trail along property as directed by City Engineer or a performance bond.

. Planning requirements before the plat will be signed:

a.

@ mo o o

Plat will be submitted to NLR Planning Department in CAD compatible DXF and/or DWG format,
tied to Arkansas State Plane Coordinates.

Provide street trees or provide a bond.

Provide streetlights or provide a bond.

Provide half of 50° ROW dedication along Pike Avenue.

Provide 10' utility easements around property perimeter.

Provide 10' utility easement on all property lines/boundaries.

Provide approved City Council ordinance abandoning the street rights of ways and utility easements
as proposed for abandonment.

. Other Boards approvals required before applying for a building permit.

a.

Provide approved City Council ordinance rezoning property to allow development.

. Permit requirements/approvals submitted before a building permit will be issued:

a.
b.

A signed and recorded plat must be on file with the Planning Department.
Prior to construction, Owner's Engineer shall submit stormwater design report for review and
approval by the City Engineer. Stormwater plans and detention calculations are to be approved by
City Engineer and a written approval provided to Planning Department. Drainage submittal shall
include, as a minimum, the following:

i. Proposed pipe material specifications.

ii. Proposed trench and bedding details, materials and specifications.
Provide CNLR Grading Permit application to City Engineer with grading plans.
Provide CNLR Stormwater Permit application to City Engineer with half size erosion control plan
showing silt fence, storm inlet protection, and drainage details.
Provide CNLR driveway/curb cut permit application to City Engineer.
Provide copy of Arkansas Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) Stormwater Permit to
City Engineer.
Prior to construction, Owner's Architect/Engineer shall submit signed construction plans and
specifications (PDF format) to NLR Planning Department.
Prior to construction, Owner's Architect/Engineer shall submit digital maps for all stormwater
drainage features in an ArcGIS or AutoCAD file to the City Engineer. The digital maps shall be
natively in State Plane coordinate system, Arkansas North Zone, North American Datum 1983,
units as feet; or the map must have sufficient points for georeferencing. The associated attributedata
table from the submitted file shall match the fields contained within the "SW Attribute Data
Entry Template.xIsx" as provided by City Engineering Department. All Control, Linear, and
Junction map features will be annotated by a unique identifier that will correspond to the same
unique identifier in the "SW Attribute Data Entry Template.xlsx" or GIS attribute table. Data
for each attribute column in the "SW Attributed Data Entry Template.x1sx" file shall be chosen
from the drop-down options of each cell, or chosen as "Other" (if not listed) and described in
the comments field. At the completion of the project, As-Builts of these shapefiles in ArcGIS
or AutoCAD format, along with associated attribute data table, shall be submitted to the City
Engineer.



6. Meet the requirements of the City Engineer, including:

a.

b.
c.

fum—y

il i

n.

Prior to any excavation/street cuts within street ROW, provide CNLR Excavation Permit

to City Engineer and Barricade Plan Permit to NLR Traffic Services.

Repair or replace existing sidewalk and curb to City Engineer's standards.

Contractor shall notify City Engineer at least 1 day prior to the construction of all
stormwater pipes and inlet structures within City ROW.

At the end of construction, Owner/Developer shall have a Professional Engineer, licensed in
the State of Arkansas, certify that all street and stormwater improvements in conjunction with
this subdivision and/or the proposed development have been inspected and constructed in
accordance with the approved plans and meet all City of North Little Rocks Standard
Specifications.

If the proposed subdivision/development is located in a FEMA designated floodplain, the first
floors of any building or house are to be a minimum of 1' above the 100-Year Base Flood
Elevation (BFE). At the completion of the project, submit Elevation Certificate to City
Engineer.

If the proposed subdivision/development is located in a FEMA designated floodplain, submit
Letter of Map Revision Based on Fill (LOMR-F) at end of project and provide a copy of FEMA
approval to City Engineer.

Driveway radii shall be labeled and shall have 25' minimum radii and be built according to
CNLR standard details (available at NLR Engineering Department).

Driveways shall not be closer than 40' to adjoining streets or 10' from adjoining property lines.
Spacing between proposed commercial/industrial driveways shall not be closer than 40'.
Driveway widths shall be labeled and shall be 10' minimum to 40' maximum.

. Cross drains in the ROW shall be labeled and shall be RCP with flare end sections unless

otherwise approved by Engineering.
All driveways are to be concrete within the ROW.

7. Meet the requirements of Community Planning, including:

oo

Provide the standard requirements of Zoning and Development Regulations.

Dumpster to have masonry screening.

No fence is to be located in front of the buildings.

All exterior lighting shall be shielded and not encroach onto neighboring properties.

If the western drive onto Rockwater Blvd is proposed as a full service drive (enter and exit
drive) the gates should be relocated to 30-feet from the property line to eliminate the
potential for cars stacking into the right of way awaiting entry.

8. Meet the requirements of the Master Street Plan, including:

a.

b.
C.
d.

a
b.
c.

d.
e.

Provide 5' sidewalks and ramps with a minimum of 5' green space between sidewalks and
curb to ADA standards and City standards.

Provide Y street improvements.

Provide ROW dedication on Pike Ave 25-feet from centerline.

Connect the bike path from Pike Ave to River Trail.

Meet the requirements of the Screening and Landscaping ordinance, including:
. All disturbed areas are to be sodded, fertilized, watered and mulched.

Provide automated underground irrigation to all required trees and shrubs.

Provide 21 street trees 30' on center along Rockwater Blvd. Provide 25 street trees along River
Road.

Provide 69 parking lot shade trees.

Parking lot shade trees must be located within the parking lot or a maximum distance of 10'
from the edge of the parking lot.

Provide a continuous screen of shrubs for any landscape strip adjacent to any parking area.
Shrubs shall be eighteen (18) inches in height at planting and be planted a maximum three (3)

6



J
k.

1.

feet apart.
Ground cover, grass, or mulch of shredded bark or stone shall be applied in all landscaped areas

to reduce moisture loss and to improve the appearance of plantings near streets.

Provide 6 foot front yard landscape strip between property line and paving.

Provide 4 foot side yard landscape strip between property line and paving.

Provide buffer between dissimilar uses or zoning. Do not remove trees from full buffers.

A portion of the western perimeter does not include the placement of the required continuous
row of screening shrubs.

Retaining walls greater than 3 '5-feet in height require a 3-foot fence and the combination of the
retaining wall and fence shall not exceed 8-feet in height.

10. Meet the following requirements concerning signage:
a. All signs require a permit and separate review.

b.

Provide sign location on site plan.

¢. No electronic changeable copy sign permitted.
11. Meet the requirements of the Fire Marshal, including:

a.

b.

Must meet the 2012 Fire and Building Codes
Gates must be 14 feet either side of the islands

c. Fire apparatus access must allow 150 feet access to all portions of the building.

d.

Sprinkler Systems and alarms will be required.

e. Addition fire hydrants will be required.
12. Meet the requirements of CAW, including:

a.

b.

All Central Arkansas Water requirements in effect at the time of request for water service must
be met.

The North Little Rock Fire Department needs to evaluate this site to determine whether
additional public and/or private fire hydrant(s) will be required. If additional fire hydrant(s) are
required, they will be installed at the Developer's expense.

The water main along Parker St will need to be adjusted and/or relocated, contact Central
Arkansas Water. That work would be done at the expense of the developer.

Please submit plans for water facilities and/or fire protection system to Central Arkansas Water
for review. Plan revisions may be required after additional review.

Contact Central Arkansas Water regarding procedures for installation of water facilities and/or
fire service. Approval of plans by the Arkansas Department of Health Engineering Division and
North Little Rock Fire Department is required.

13. Meet the requirements of NLR Electric.
14. Meet the requirements of NLR Wastewater, including:

a.
b.

Mo oo

Provide the peak flow contribution for the purposed development.

Please submit a full set of sanitary sewer plans to NLRW for review and approval prior to
construction; main location may need to be relocated.

Grease interceptor required if food will be prepared and sold.

Lint interceptor required if there will be common laundry.

Connections to the sanitary sewer are not permitted for swimming pool drains.

Sanitary sewer improvements shall be completed prior to ROW abandonments.

15. Meet the requirements of Rock Region Metro (CATA).

Mr. Chambers stated that the Design Review Committee reviewed the application, the applicants were present
and agreed to the requirements. He stated the Committee recommended approval. Ms. Belasco seconded the
recommendation.

The Commission voted unanimously for approval. SD2022-36 was approved.



SD2022-36 North Argenta Addition Replat Blk 41, Lots 1R- 3R (a replat of 2 residential lots running east/west
with no street access into 3 lots running north/south at 520 W 14 St)

1.

2.

0.

Engineering requirements on detention:

a. Pay the drainage in-lieu fee of $500/acre for residential development instead of providing onsite detention.

Engineering requirements before the plat will be signed:

a. Provide % street improvements (street, drainage, curb and gutter, sidewalk, streetlights) or a performance
bond.

b. Street improvements must be approved by City Engineer and accepted by City Council.

Planning requirements before the plat will be signed:

a. Plat will be submitted to NLR Planning Department in CAD compatible DXF and/or DWG format, tied
to Arkansas State Plane Coordinates.

b. Provide 1 tree per residential lot located within 10-feet of the front property line or provide a bond.

c. Provide 10’ utility easements around property perimeter.

d. Provide all building setbacks on the proposed plat. The minimum side yard setback for R3 zoned property
is 6-feet.

e. The building setback for Lot 3R should follow the sewer easement.

Permit requirements/approvals submitted before a building permit will be issued:

a. A signed and recorded plat must be on file with the Planning Department.

Meet the requirements of the City Engineer, including:

a. Prior to any excavation/street cuts within street ROW, provide CNLR Excavation Permit to City Engineer
and Barricade Plan Permit to NLR Traffic Services.

b. Repair or replace existing sidewalk and curb to City Engineer’s standards.

Meet the requirements of Planning, including:

a. Provide the standard requirements of Zoning and Development Regulations.

Meet the requirements of the Master Street Plan, including:

a. Provide 5' sidewalks and ramps with a minimum of 5’ green space between sidewalks and curb to ADA
standard and City standards.

b. Provide Y street improvements.

Meet the requirements of the Screening and Landscaping ordinance, including:

a. All disturbed areas are to be sodded, fertilized, watered and mulched.

b. Provide 1 tree per residential lot or provide a bond.

Meet the requirements of the Fire Marshal.

10. Meet the requirements of NLR Electric.
11. Meet the requirements of NLR Wastewater, including:

a. Due to the proposed replat a sanitary sewer main extension will be required to serve Lot 1R.
b. Please submit a full set of plans to NLRW for review and approval.

12. Meet the requirements of CAW,

Mr. Chambers stated that the Design Plan Review Committee reviewed the application, the applicants were
present and agreed to the requirements. He stated the Committee recommended approval. Ms. Belasco
seconded the recommendation.

The Commission voted unanimously for approval. SD2022-36 was approved.

SD2022-40 White Oak Crossing Lot 2, SPR (SPR for development of 2 commercial buildings located at 9330
White Oak Xing)

1.

Provide a preliminary plat for the commercial area indicting review and approval by the Planning
Commission.



. Engineering requirements on detention:

b.

Option to pay the drainage in-lieu of fee of $5000/acre instead of providing onsite detention.

. Permit requirements/approvals submitted before a building permit will be issued:

b.
c.

d.
€.

f.

Provide CNLR Grading Permit application to City Engineer with grading plans.

Provide CNLR Stormwater Permit application to City Engineer with half size erosion control plan
showing silt fence, storm inlet protection, and drainage details.

Provide CNLR driveway/curb cut permit application to City Engineer.

Provide copy of Arkansas Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) Stormwater Permit to City
Engineer.

Prior to construction, Owner’s Architect/Engineer shall submit signed construction plans and
specifications (PDF format) to NLR Planning Department.

. Meet the requirements of the City Engineer, including:

c.
d.

c.

f.
g
h
1

j-

Provide Y street improvements (street, drainage, curb and gutter, sidewalk, streetlights) or a performance
bond.

Prior to any excavation/street cuts within street ROW, provide CNLR Excavation Permit to City Engineer
and Barricade Plan Permit to NLR Traffic Services.

Driveway radii shall be labeled and shall have 25’ minimum radii and be built according to CNLR standard
details (available at NLR Engineering Department).

Driveways shall not be closer than 40' to adjoining streets or 10' from adjoining property lines.

Spacing between proposed commercial/industrial driveways shall not be closer than 40°.

. Driveway widths shall be labeled and shall be 10’ minimum to 40’ maximum.

Cross drains in the ROW shall be labeled and shall be RCP with flared end sections unless otherwise
approved by Engineering.
All driveways are to be concrete within the ROW.

. Meet the requirements of Community Planning, including:

oo o

Provide the standard requirements of Zoning and Development Regulations.

Provide the location of the order menu board, if applicable, for the proposed drive-thru uses.
Dumpster to have masonry screening.

No fence is to be within a front building line.

All exterior lighting shall be shielded and not encroach onto neighboring properties.

. Meet the requirements of the Master Street Plan, including:

C.

d.
€.

Provide 5' sidewalks and ramps with a minimum of 5’ green space between the sidewalks and curb to
ADA standards and City standards.

Provide Y% street improvements as required.

Provide ROW dedication as required.

. Meet the requirements of the Screening and Landscaping ordinance, including:

oo o

=h

All disturbed areas are to be sodded, fertilized, watered and mulched.

Provide automated underground irrigation to all required trees and shrubs.

Provide 8 street trees 30’ on center.

Provide 10 parking lot shade trees.

Parking lot shade trees must be located within the parking lot or a maximum distance of 10’ from the edge
of the parking lot.

Provide a continuous screen of shrubs for any landscape strip adjacent to all parking areas. Shrubs shall
be eighteen (18) inches in height at planting and be planted a maximum three (3) feet apart. The area long
White Oak Xing and areas along the eastern and western perimeters lack the require shrub placement.
Ground cover, grass, or mulch of shredded bark or stone shall be applied in all landscaped areas to reduce
moisture loss and to improve the appearance of plantings near streets.

Provide 6 foot front yard landscape strip between property line and paving.

Provide 4 foot side yard landscape strip between property line and paving.



j. Provide buffer between dissimilar uses or zoning, Do not remove trees from full buffers. A full screening
buffer is required along the southern perimeter where adjacent to residentially zoned and used property.
8. Meet the following requirements concerning signage:
a. All signs require a permit and separate review.
9. Meet the requirements of the Fire Marshal, including:

a. Must meet the 2012 Arkansas Fire and Building Codes.

b. There will need to be a fire hydrant within 600” of any portion of the building if it is equip a fire sprinkler
system, or 400’ if not.

10. Meet the requirements of CAW, including:

a. All Central Arkansas Water requirements in effect at the time of request for water service must be met.

b. A water main extension will be needed to provide water service to this property.

c. The North Little Rock Fire Department needs to evaluate this site to determine whether additional public
and/or private fire hydrant(s) will be required. If additional fire hydrant(s) are required, they will be
installed at the Developer's expense.

d. Please submit plans for water facilities and/or fire protection system to Central Arkansas Water for
review. Plan revisions may be required after additional review.

e. Contact Central Arkansas Water regarding procedures for installation of water facilities and/or fire
service. Approval of plans by the Arkansas Department of Health Engineering Division and North Little
Rock Fire Department is required.

11. Meet the requirements of NLR Electric.
12. Meet the requirements of NLR Wastewater, including:

a. Please submit a full set of sanitary sewer plans to NLRW for review and approval.

b. The White Oak Connection Fee applies and will be required.

c. Grease interceptor required if food will be prepared and sold.

Mr. Chambers stated that the Design Review Committee reviewed the application, the applicants were present
and agreed to the requirements. He stated the Committee recommended approval. Ms. Belasco seconded the
recommendation.

The Commission voted unanimously for approval. SD2022-40 was approved.

SD2022-41 Choctaw Addition Lots 6 & 7, Blk 20, SPR (SPR for a commercial building located at 2207 E
Broadway St)

1. The building construction must comply with all City, County, State and Federal requirements.
a. Submit plans for commercial building plan review.
2. Meet the requirements of the City Engineer.
3. Meet the requirements of Community Planning, including:
g. Provide the standard requirements of Zoning and Development Regulations.
h. If a dumpster is added the dumpster to have masonry screening.
i. No fence is to be within a front building line. Remove the existing front yard fence. If the front yard fence
is allowed to remain relocate the fence back to 30-feet from the front property line.
j.  All exterior lighting shall be shielded and not encroach onto neighboring properties.
Meet the requirements of the Master Street Plan.
5. Meet the requirements of the Screening and Landscaping ordinance, including:
k. All disturbed areas are to be sodded, fertilized, watered and mulched.
1. Provide automated underground irrigation to all required trees and shrubs.
m. Provide 4 street trees 30’ on center.
n. Provide 1 parking lot shade trees.

b

10



o. Parking lot shade trees must be located within the parking lot or a maximum distance of 10 from the edge
of the parking lot.
p. Provide a continuous screen of shrubs for any landscape strip adjacent to any parking area. Shrubs shall
be eighteen (18) inches in height at planting and be planted a maximum three (3) feet apart.
q. Ground cover, grass, or mulch of shredded bark or stone shall be applied in all landscaped areas to reduce
moisture loss and to improve the appearance of plantings near streets.
r. Provide 6 foot front yard landscape strip between property line and paving.
s. Provide 4 foot side yard landscape strip between property line and paving.
t. Provide buffer between dissimilar uses or zoning. Do not remove trees from full buffers.
6. Meet the following requirements concerning signage:
b. All signs require a permit and separate review.
c. Provide sign location on site plan.
d. No pole sign permitted.
e. No electronic changeable copy sign permitted.
7. Meet the requirements of the Fire Marshal, including:
a. Must meet the 2012 Fire and Building Codes
b. Must have a fire hydrant within 400 feet of the building.
8. Meet the requirements of CAW.
9. Meet the requirements of NLR Electric.
10. Meet the requirements of NLR Wastewater.

Mr. Chambers stated the Design Review Committee reviewed the application, the applicants were present and
agreed to the requirements. He stated the Committee recommended approval. Ms. Belasco seconded the
recommendation.

Mr. Damon Thomas addressed the Commission, stating they were willing to do whatever the City would like
them to do. Mr. Clifton asked him if he received the requirements from the Design Review Committee and if
he agreed to them. He answered yes to both.

The Commission voted unanimously for approval. SD2022-41 was approved.

SD2022-43 UP Railroad SPR (SPR for a wastewater treatment facility located at 600 Pike Avenue) was
Postponed

Rezone #2022-19 Rezoning from C3 to R6 to allow a manufactured home located at 8004 MacArthur Dr

Ms. Brenda Fernandez, the applicant, addressed the Commission, stating she was now in compliance with the
conditions set forth by the Design Review Committee.

Mr. Joe Reynolds addressed the Commission as a representative of homeowners in the area. He stated he and
others were oppose to the R6 zoning, believing it should be C3. He continued with when the City of North
Little Rock annexed this area, it was voted by the Planning Commission the area should be zoned C3 and they
would like to keep that zoning. He continued there had been two previous manufactured homes at this address
which had to be removed. He recognized there were other homes in the area on similar propetties but they
had been grandfathered in with the annexation.

Mr. Chambers stated he would like to see in addition to the site plan for cases like this pictures from the

property lines and pictures to give a good sense of the depth of the property and how far back the home could
be and would be placed. He asked if a Special Use or Conditional Use would work for the property. Mr.

11



Spencer answered neither of those options would work for this property and if the rezoning was approved, the
Board of Adjustments would then decide if they would issue a variance for the setback.

Chairman Clifton asked for a roll call to vote.

Banks Belasco No Chambers No
Foster No Phillips No Pierce No
Wallace No White Yes Clifton No

Rezone 2022-22 was not approved with (1) affirmative votes.

Rezone #2022-20 Rezoning from R3 to R4 to recognize two existing residential homes on a single lot located
at 1315 W 16™ St

Mr. Hayden Buckley, the applicant, addressed the Commission, stating he was happy to answer any questions
by the Commission.

M. Chambers stated while he did not normally support rezoning cases like this, he was in support of this one,
due to the age and nature of these residential lots.

Mr. Clifton asked Mr. Buckley if he had received and agreed to the staff recommendations. Mr. Buckley
answered yes to both. Mr. Clifton asked Mr. Spencer if Mr. Buckley would have to present a site plan to City
Council. Mr. Spencer answered that Mr. Buckley was essentially wanting to have two meters on the property
and he would have to meet whatever requirements City Council requested.

M. Chambers if he would have to follow any ADA requirements. Mr. Spencer answered he would not unless
he decided to rent the property to an individual with ADA requirements.

Chairman Clifton asked for a roll call to vote.

Banks Belasco Yes Chambers Yes
Foster Yes Phillips Yes Pierce Yes
Wallace Yes White Yes Clifton Yes

Rezone 2022-20 was approved with (8) affirmative votes.
Rezone #2022-21 Rezoning from C3 to C6 to allow residential as an allowable use located at 2120 Main St

Mr. Butch Penney, the applicant, addressed the Commission, stating he had owned the property for several
years and had always rented it for small businesses. The recent tenant was told the property would need to be
rezoned for residential when they were trying to get the electric service for the property.

Mr. Chambers stated he would prefer the people using the site park on the circle drive behind the house. Mr.
Penney stated they also owned the gravel lot next to the property and this was usually where the tenants

parked.

Chairman Clifton asked for a roll call to vote.

Banks Belasco Yes Chambers Yes
Foster Yes Phillips Yes Pierce Yes
Wallace Yes White Yes Clifton Yes

Rezone 2022-21 was approved with (8) affirmative votes.

Conditional Use #2022-11 - To allow auto sales in a C4 zone at 1815 E. Broadway Street

12



Ms. Veronica Moll-Edwards, the applicant, addressed the Commission. Chairman Clifton asked Ms. Moll-
Edwards if she had received a copy of the requirements for the property and if she agreed to them. She answered
yes to both, but also acknowledged that one of the conditions was the front yard fence, which the Commission
could not approve allowing the fence to remain but she would bring the requests to allow the fence to City Council.

Chairman Clifton asked for a roll call to vote.

Banks Belasco Yes Chambers Yes
Foster Yes Phillips Yes Pierce Yes
Wallace Yes White Yes Clifton Yes

Conditional Use 2022-11 was approved with (8) affirmative votes.

Conditional Use #2022-10 to allow an after school program located at 5301 McClanahan Drive Suite B1 was
Postponed

Special Use #2022-07 to allow the sale of dirt for a 3-year period located at 12602 Faulkner Lake Rd

Mr. Rick Middleton, the applicant, addressed the Commission, stating he intended to build a home on the property
in the future and he planned to dig a pond, which was why he was selling the dirt.

Ms. Danielle Cunningham, a neighbor in the area, addressed the Commission, stating she had concerns with
flooding and runoff if Mr. Middleton started digging and removes the topsoil. Mr. Chambers assured Ms.
Cunningham the Special Use request, which if approved, contained conditions, and one of the conditions was the
City Engineer must approve the drainage plan and ensure there was a guard against erosion. Ms. Cunningham
stated she was also concerned with an increase in traffic on Faulkner Lake Road stating the road was already in
poor shape.

Ms. Marie Hollowell, representing the Stone Link Neighborhood Assoc., addressed the Commission, stating she
had met with the Middletons and her only concerns with the project was the heavy trucks and the additional traffic
on Faulkner Lake Road would further deteriorate the road, as well as an increase in dirt and debris from the sale
of dirt.

Ms. Lynetta Dickerson, a neighbor in the area, addressed the Commission stating she also had concerns with the
increase of traffic on the road and an increase in dirt and debris.

Mr. Chambers informed everyone the City and the County were currently in talks to upgrade Faulkner Lake Road
and address some of the roads current condition and address the flooding issues.

Commissioner Wallace stated he was currently a resident of the area and there was a great deal of activity
happening on the property. He asked Mr. Middleton to speak on how he would address the noise and the dust.
Mr. Middleton stated he planned to pave the drive “down to the tree line” and the hours of operation would be
limited to 8:00 am -5:00 pm.

Mr. Spencer clarified the application was for a Special Use to sell the dirt, only. He stated Mr. Middleton could
dig the pond and build a house today but the Commission was only considering the Special Use request for the
sale of dirt. He also stated Mr. Middleton did not currently own the property, so any activity happening now was
from the current owners.

Mr. Walter Cunningham addressed the Commission, asking for clarification on the hours of operation. Mr.
Middleton stated that hours would be Monday - Friday from 8:00 am - 5:00 pm and maybe on Saturdays mornings
during the spring.

13



Ms. Cunningham addressed the Commission again stating Mr. Middleton had addressed all of her concerns and
she was in support of the project.

Chairman Clifton asked for a roll call to vote.

Banks Belasco Yes Chambers Yes
Foster Yes Phillips Yes Pierce Yes
Wallace Yes White Yes Clifton Yes

Special Use 2022-07 was approved with (8) affirmative votes.

Public Comments/Adjournment:

Chairman Clifton asked for any public comments.

Mr. Chambers moved to adjourn the meeting. Ms. Belasco seconded the motion.
Chairman Clifton adjourned the meeting at 6:05 pm.

Respectfully Submitted:

Donna James, Planning

14



SD2022-45 - AC Lewis Addition, Lot 1 (Replat of 2 lots into a single lot and SPR to allow the construction
of an office at 702 N Palm St)

1. Engineering requirements on detention:

a.

b.

Provide on-site stormwater detention as well as clear calculations showing that detention volume is
sufficient, or demonstrate to City Engineer that on-site detention is not required (based on proposed
development) by providing detention calculations showing pre and post site runoff comparisons.

Provide 40’ drainage easement along eastern property boundary for the Redwood drainage channel.

2. Engineering requirements before the plat will be signed:

a.

Provide Y4 street improvements (street, drainage, curb and gutter, sidewalk, streetlights) or a
performance bond along E 7 St.

3. Planning requirements before the plat will be signed:

a.

b.

C.

d.

Plat will be submitted to NLR Planning Department in CAD compatible DXF and/or DWG format,
tied to Arkansas State Plane Coordinates.
Provide a 40’ building line along Range Line Rd.

Provide a 25’ wide easement along the northern property line as shown on the plat. 15° of the
easement is to be dedicated exclusively as a sanitary sewer easement.
Provide a 10’ easement along N Palm St and E 7" St as shown on the plat.

4. Permit requirements/approvals submitted before a building permit will be issued:

a.

b.

/e

5 ®ommo

A signed and recorded plat must be on file with the Planning Department.
If applicable, prior to construction, Owner’s Engineer shall submit stormwater design report for
review and approval by the City Engineer. Stormwater plans and detention calculations are to be
approved by City Engineer and a written approval provided to Planning Department. Drainage
submittal shall include, as a minimum, the following:
i. Proposed pipe material specifications.

ii. Proposed trench and bedding details, materials and specifications.
Provide CNLR Grading Permit application to City Engineer with grading plans.
Provide CNLR Stormwater Permit application to City Engineer with half size erosion control plan
showing silt fence, storm inlet protection, and drainage details.
Provide CNLR driveway/curb cut permit application to City Engineer.
Provide CNLR Floodplain Development Permit application to City Engineer.
Provide copy of Arkansas Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) Stormwater Permit to City
Engineer.
Prior to construction, Owner’s Architect/Engineer shall submit signed construction plans and
specifications (PDF format) to NLR Planning Department. If applicable, prior to construction,
Owner’s Architect/Engineer shall submit digital maps for all stormwater drainage features in an
ArcGIS or AutoCAD file to the City Engineer. The digital maps shall be natively in State Plane
coordinate system, Arkansas North Zone, North American Datum 1983, units as feet; or the map
must have sufficient points for georeferencing. The associated attribute data table from the submitted
file shall match the fields contained within the “SW Attribute Data Entry Template.xlsx” as provided
by City Engineering Department. All Control, Linear, and Junction map features will be annotated by
a unique identifier that will correspond to the same unique identifier in the “SW Attribute Data Entry
Template.xIsx” or GIS attribute table. Data for each attribute column in the “SW Attributed Data
Entry Template.xIsx” file shall be chosen from the drop-down options of each cell, or chosen as
“Other” (if not listed) and described in the comments field. At the completion of the project, As-



Page 2 of 3
SD2022-45 - AC Lewis Lots 1 & 2 Replat and SPR

Builts of these shapefiles in ArcGIS or AutoCAD format, along with associated attribute data table,
shall be submitted to the City Engineer.

5. Meet the requirements of the City Engineer, including:

a.

b.

Prior to any excavation/street cuts within street ROW, provide CNLR Excavation Permit to City
Engineer and Barricade Plan Permit to NLR Traffic Services.

Contractor shall notify City Engineer at least 1-day prior to the construction of all stormwater pipes
and inlet structures within City ROW.

At the end of construction, Owner/Developer shall have a Professional Engineer, licensed in the State
of Arkansas, certify that all street and stormwater improvements in conjunction with this subdivision
and/or the proposed development have been inspected and constructed in accordance with the
approved plans and meet all City of North Little Rocks Standard Specifications.

If the proposed subdivision/development is located in a FEMA designated floodplain, the first floors
of any building or house are to be a minimum of 1' above the 100-Year Base Flood Elevation (BFE).
At the completion of the project, submit Elevation Certificate to City Engineer.

If the proposed subdivision/development is located in a FEMA designated floodplain, submit Letter
of Map Revision Based on Fill (LOMR-F) at end of project and provide a copy of FEMA approval to
City Engineer.

6. Meet the requirements of Community Planning, including:

S ER b 0 R0 oD

=

Provide the standard requirements of Zoning and Development Regulations.

All exterior lighting shall be shielded and not encroach onto neighboring properties.

Site to comply with ADA requirements.

Planning does not support gravel abutting the property line along E 7t St.

As indicated the fence is to be located behind the front building line. Front yard fence are not
allowed.

Electric fences are allowed within the side and rear yards of industrially zoned property.
Maximum height of side yard fence is 6’ including barbed wire.

Maximum height of rear yard fence is 8" including barbed wire.

The new building and associated parking must be constructed with the Phase 1 portion of the
proposed development. Add note to site plan showing or describing Phase 1.

Office must be built before a business license is applied for.

The approval in 2020 (SD2020-17) allowed the existing building to be used only as storage. The plan
indicates the building will be renovated. The use for the renovated 22° x 34’ building is limited to
storage.

7. Meet the requirements of the Master Street Plan, including:

a.

b.

Provide 5' sidewalks and ramps with a minimum of 5” green space between the sidewalk and curb to
ADA standards and City standards.
Provide % street improvements.

8. Meet the requirements of the Screening and Landscaping ordinance, including:

o peow

All disturbed areas are to be sodded, fertilized, watered and mulched.
Provide automated underground irrigation to all required trees and shrubs.
Provide 23 street trees along E 7% St.

Provide 14 street trees along N Palm St.

Provide 5 strect trees along Range Line Ave.



Page 3 of 3
SD2022-45 - AC Lewis Lots 1 & 2 Replat and SPR

g.

h.
1.

Provide 1 parking ot shade tree as shown. Parking lot shade trees must be located within the parking
lot or a maximum distance of 10” from the edge of the parking lot.

Provide a continuous screen of shrubs for any landscape strip adjacent to any parking area. Shrubs
shall be 18” in height at planting and be planted a maximum 3’ apart. Show on site plan.

Provide 6’ front yard landscape strip between property line and paving.

Provide 4’ side yard landscape strip between property line and paving.

9. Meet the following requirements concerning signage:

a.

Signs require a permit and separate review.

10. Meet the requirements of the Fire Marshal, including:

a.

€.

Abide by the requirements of the NLR Zoning Ordinance 5.11.10 for electric fences including:

i. There shall be a disarm switch or other device (approved by the Police and Fire Departments) on
the outside of the perimeter fence within 2’ of the primary gate or opening.

Meet the requirements of the 2012 Arkansas Fire Prevention Code including:

i. Gates securing fire apparatus access roads will have a minimum width of 20 feet. (Volume 1
Appendix D 103.5)

Fire apparatus access roads will support 85,000 Ibs. (NLR Ordinance 9267)

An addition interior hydrant may be required to serve the site.

Provide a manual gate along E 7™ St to allow fire department access to the site.

11. Meet the requirements of CAW, including:

a.

All Central Arkansas Water requirements in effect at the time of request for water service must be
met.

12. Meet the requirements of NLR Wastewater, including:

a.

b.

Label on plans whether fence is chain-link or electrified.

There is an existing 24" sanitary sewer gravity main adjacent to the planned fence line along the
north side of this property. This interceptor must not be damaged or disturbed. Have the contractor
coordinate this work with NLRW so that the interceptor can be marked immediately prior to
construction.

Provide a 15°wide exclusive sanitary sewer easement to cover the existing 24” interceptor.

If vehicle maintenance or repair activities are planned the owner must submit a set of plumbing
plans to NLRW offices for review.

The sewer main to the south may not be deep enough to provide gravity sewer to the proposed
building. Careful evaluation/control of the finished floor elevation is required to make certain that
this building can connect via gravity. A pump station will not be approved for this connection.

13. Meet the requirements of North Little Rock Electric.

14. Meet the requirements of Rock Region Metro.



SD2022-46 - Wal-Mart Commercial Addition, Lot 6 (SPR for a commercial bldg at 13101 Crystal Hill Rd)

1. Engineering requirements on detention:
a. Option to pay the drainage in-lieu of fee of $5000/acre instead of providing on-site detention.

2. Permit requirements/approvals submitted before a building permit will be issued:

a. A signed and recorded plat must be on file with the Planning Department.

b. Provide CNLR Grading Permit application to City Engineer with grading plans.

c. Provide CNLR Stormwater Permit application to City Engineer with half size erosion control plan
showing silt fence, storm inlet protection, and drainage details.

d. Provide copy of Arkansas Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) Stormwater Permit to City
Engineer.

e. Provide copy of Corps of Engineers (COE) 404 Clearance/Permit to City Engineer.

3. Meet the requirements of the City Engineer, including:
a. Provide plans & Corps of Engineers approval for bridge across protected wetlands.

4. Meet the requirements of Community Planning, including:

a. Provide the standard requirements of Zoning and Development Regulations.

b. Include a note the dumpster screening is to be a masonry screening material.

c. Provide plantings around the dumpster to soften the placement along the Boulevard. Show on site
plan.

d. All exterior lighting shall be shielded and not encroach onto neighboring properties.

e. The use of the property as indicated with 3180 square feet of restaurant and 5634 square feet as
office/retail. The site plan indicates the placement of 54 parking spaces with 19 spaces being
required for retail/office and 32 spaces required for restaurant uses.

5. Meet the requirements of the Screening and Landscaping ordinance, including:
All disturbed areas are to be sodded, fertilized, watered and mulched.

a.

b. Provide automated underground irrigation to all required trees and shrubs.

c. Provide 7 street trees 30° on center along Maumelle Blvd, as shown.

d. Provide 1 street tree along Crystal Hill Rd.

e. Provide 9 parking lot shade trees, 4 to be placed within the interior. Parking lot shade trees must be
located within the parking lot or a maximum distance of 10’ from the edge of the parking lot.

f. Provide a continuous screen of shrubs for any landscape strip adjacent to any parking area. Shrubs

shall be 18” in height at planting and be planted a maximum 3’ feet apart. This includes the side edge
of parking areas (not just the front). Show on site plan.

g. Ground cover, grass, or mulch of shredded bark or stone shall be applied in all landscaped areas to
reduce moisture loss and to improve the appearance of plantings near streets.

h. Provide 6’ front yard landscape strip between property line and paving along street sides.

i. Provide 4’ side yard landscape strip between property line and paving.

6. Meet the following requirements concerning signage:
a. All signs require a permit and separate review.
b. No free standing signs (pole sign) are permitted.

7. Meet the requirements of the Fire Marshal, including:
a. Provide an approved fire protection plan.
b. Fire apparatus access roads will support 85,000 1bs. (NLR Ordinance 9267)
c. Meet the requirements of the 2012 Arkansas Fire Prevention Code including:



Page 2 of 2
SD2022-46 - Wal-Mart Commercial Addition, Lot 6 SPR

i. Mixed use occupancies shall meet requirements of 2012 AFC for mixed use (Volume 2
Section 508)

8. Meet the requirements of CAW, including:

a. All Central Arkansas Water requirements in effect at the time of request for water service must be
met.

b. Submit plans for water facilities and/or fire protection system to Central Arkansas Water for review.
Plan revisions may be required after additional review.

c. Contact Central Arkansas Water regarding procedures for installation of water facilities and/or fire
service. Approval of plans by the Arkansas Department of Health Engineering Division and North
Little Rock Fire Department is required.

9. Meet the requirements of NLR Wastewater, including:
a. Submit a full set of sanitary sewer plans to NLRW for review and approval prior to construction.
b. Grease Interceptor required if food will be prepared and sold.

10. Meet the requirements of NLR Electric.

11. Meet the requirements of Rock Region Metro.



SD2022-47 - Tulip Farms Addition, Lot 3 (Preliminary Plat & SPR for 3 buildings at 13701 HWY 70)

1. Engineering requirements on detention:
a. Provide on-site stormwater detention as well as clear calculations showing that detention volume is
sufficient, or demonstrate to City Engineer that on-site detention is not required (based on proposed
development) by providing detention calculations showing pre and post site runoff comparisons.

2. Engineering requirements before the plat will be signed:
a. Show and label boundary of detention area as a drainage easement.

3. Planning requirements before the plat will be signed:
a. Provide 10’ utility easements around property perimeter except within the areas currently zoned
CONS.
b. Provide 50 platted buffer abutting R2.
c. Provide 30’ building setback except within the areas currently zoned CONS.
d. Provide 20° sewer easement as shown. A note on the plat indicates the easement as abandon. Provide
the ordinance # and date of the abandonment.

4. Permit requirements/approvals submitted before a building permit will be issued:

a. A signed and recorded plat must be on file with the Planning Department.

b. Prior to construction, Owner’s Engineer shall submit stormwater design report for review and
approval by the City Engineer. Stormwater plans and detention calculations are to be approved by
City Engineer and a written approval provided to Planning Department. Drainage submittal shall
include, as a minimum, the following:

i. Proposed pipe material specifications.
ii. Proposed trench and bedding details, materials and specifications.

¢. Provide CNLR Grading Permit application to City Engineer with grading plans.

d. Provide CNLR Stormwater Permit application to City Engineer with half size erosion control plan
showing silt fence, storm inlet protection, and drainage details.

e. Provide copy of ARDOT driveway permit.

. Provide copy of Arkansas Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) Stormwater Permit to City
Engineer.

g. If necessary, provide copy of Corps of Engineers (COE) 404 Clearance/Permit to City Engineer.

h. Prior to construction, Owner’s Architect/Engineer shall submit signed construction plans and
specifications (PDT format) to NLR Planning Department.

i. Prior to construction, Owner’s Architect/Engineer shall submit digital maps for all stormwater
drainage features in an ArcGIS or AutoCAD file to the City Engineer. The digital maps shall be
natively in State Plane coordinate system, Arkansas North Zone, North American Datum 1983, units
as feet; or the map must have sufficient points for georeferencing. The associated attribute data table
from the submitted file shall match the fields contained within the “SW Attribute Data Entry
Template.xlsx” as provided by City Engineering Department. All Control, Linear, and Junction map
features will be annotated by a unique identifier that will correspond to the same unique identifier in
the “SW Attribute Data Entry Template.xIsx” or GIS attribute table. Data for each attribute column in
the “SW Attributed Data Entry Template.xIsx” file shall be chosen from the drop-down options of
each cell, or chosen as “Other” (if not listed) and described in the comments field. At the completion
of the project, As-Builts of these shapefiles in ArcGIS or AutoCAD format, along with associated
attribute data table, shall be submitted to the City Engineer.

5. Meet the requirements of the City Engineer, including:
a. Provide full set of civil plans to City Engineer.



Page 2 of 4
SD2022-47 - Tulip Farms Addition Lot 3 Prel Plat & SPR

b.

At the end of construction, Owner/Developer shall have a Professional Engineer, licensed in the State
of Arkansas, certify that all street and stormwater improvements in conjunction with this subdivision
and/or the proposed development have been inspected and constructed in accordance with the
approved plans and meet all City of North Little Rocks Standard Specifications.

6. Meet the requirements of Community Planning, including:

a.
. Dumpster locations to be approved by staff as locations are determined by tenant needs.

b
C.
d. Provide the location, height and type fences proposed for the development. No fence is to be within a

€.

Provide the standard requirements of Zoning and Developmént Regulations.
All dumpsters are to have masonry screening.

front building line.
All exterior lighting shall be shielded and not encroach onto neighboring properties.

7. Meet the requirements of the Master Street Plan, including:

a.

b.

Provide Y street improvements.
Provide ROW dedication.

8. Meet the requirements of the Screening and Landscaping ordinance, including:

oo o

lmz]

J-
k.
1

All disturbed areas are to be sodded, fertilized, watered and mulched.

Provide automated underground irrigation to all required trees and shrubs.

Plant two rows of trees in the 50’ buffer as shown.

Provide 30 street trees 30” on center along HWY 70.

Provide 116 parking lot shade trees for the passenger vehicle parking. Trees are to be located on the
interior and the outer edge of paving.

Provide 100 parking lot shade trees for the trailer parking. Trees are to be located at outer edge of
paving.

Parking lot shade trees must be located within the parking lot or a maximum distance of 10” from the
edge of the parking lot. Parking lot shade trees located for the trailer parking area may be located 15
off the edge of pavement to lessen the potential conflicts of the trees and trucks/trailers.

Provide a continuous screen of shrubs for any landscape strip adjacent to any parking area. Shrubs
shall be 18” in height at planting and be planted a maximum 3’ apart.

Ground cover, grass, or mulch of shredded bark or stone shall be applied in all landscaped areas to
reduce moisture loss and to improve the appearance of plantings near streets.

Provide 6’ front yard landscape strip between property line and paving.

Provide 4’ side yard landscape strip between property line and paving.

Provide buffer between dissimilar uses or zoning. Do not remove trees from full buffers.

9. Meet the following requirements concerning signage:

a.

Signs require a permit and separate review.

10. Meet the requirements of the Fire Marshal, including:

a.
b.

Provide an approved fire protection plan.
Meet the requirements of the 2012 Arkansas Fire Prevention Code including:
i.  Group S-1 storage facilities with fire areas exceeding 12,000 square feet shall be equipped
with an automatic fire sprinkler system. (Volume 2 Section 903.2.9)
ii.  Class 1 standpipes will be provided where required and in remote areas more than 200’
from an exit. (Volume 2 Section 905.4)



Page 3 of 4
SD2022-47 - Tulip Farms Addition Lot 3 Prel Plat & SPR

iii.  Exit access travel distance shall meet the requirements of 2021 IBC Section 1017.2.2 or the
2012 AFPC Volume 2 Section 1016.2.
iv.  The building shall be equipped as necessary to comply with the requirements of Volume 1
Section 510 for emergency responder radio coverage.
v.  Meet the fire flow requirements of Volume 1 Appendix B.
vi.  Meet the fire hydrant distribution requirements of Volume 1 Appendix C.
vii.  The facilities will be provided with two remote fire apparatus access roads complying with
the requirements of Volume 1 Section 503.1.2, D104.
viii.  Where there is a divided entrance each lane shall be a minimum of 14’ clearance,
(Volume 1 Section 503.2.1.1)
ix.  The facilities will be equipped with an aerial apparatus access road meeting the requirements
of Volume 1 Section D105.
Fire apparatus access roads will support 85,000 Ibs. (NLR Ordinance 9267)
Due to the noise levels in facilities of this nature visible fire alarm notification devices shall be placed
in coordination with the location of isles. The Fire Marshal’s Office shall be involved with the
placement to ensure their visibility.
Work with NLR Fire Dept to provide a fire dept apparatus access road between all lots within this
subdivision.

11. Meet the requirements of CAW, including:

a.

b.

All Central Arkansas Water requirements in effect at the time of request for water service must be
met.

Please submit plans for water facilities and/or fire protection system to Central Arkansas Water for
review. Plan revisions may be required after additional review.

Contact Central Arkansas Water regarding procedures for installation of water facilities and/or fire
service. Approval of plans by the Arkansas Department of Health Engineering Division and North
Little Rock Fire Department is required.

Central Arkansas Water is designing a water line extension in coordination with the site plan
improvements to provide water to this site and adjacent sites. Update water line easements and
grading based upon final design of the water line.

Due to the nature of this facility, installation of an approved reduced pressure zone backflow
preventer assembly (RPZ) is required on the domestic water service. This assembly must be
installed prior to the first point of use. Central Arkansas Water (CAW) requires that upon
installation of the RPZA, successful tests of the assembly must be completed by a Certified
Assembly Tester licensed by the State of Arkansas and approved by CAW. The test results must be
sent to CAW's Cross Connection Section within ten days of installation and annually thereafter.
Contact the Cross Connection Section at 377-1226 if you would like to discuss backflow prevention
requirements for this project.

12. Meet the requirements of NLR Wastewater, including:

a.

The Hill Lake Connection Fee applies to this project. The current rate for the Hill Lake Connection
Fee is $1,353.00 per acre. The fee will increase on January 1, 2023. Payment of this fee is required
prior to connection to NLRW’s collection system.

Please submit a full set of sanitary sewer plans to NLRW for review and approval prior to
construction.

The developer shall provide a 12” force main to serve the development, extended to the eastern
property line and installed within the proposed sanitary sewer easement.



Page 4 of 4
SD2022-47 - Tulip Farms Addition Lot 3 Prel Plat & SPR

13. Meet the requirements of NLR Electric.

14. Meet the requirements of Rock Region Metro.




SD2022-48 - East Broadway Addition, Lot 1 (SPR for a building at 3310 E Broadway)

1. The building setback is to be measured between the lot/property line or projected Master Street Plan right
of way and the principal building or accessory structure. The required ROW for E Broadway is 80°. The
plan submitted indicates E Broadway with a 60’ ROW. Provide Board of Zoning Adjustment approval
of a reduced front setback to allow the building placement with a 40-foot setback from the existing right

of way.

2. Provide an ordinance adopted by City Council abandoning the easement located under the building
indicated on the site plan.

3. Meet the requirements of the City Engineer.

4. Meet the requirements of Community Planning, including:

Provide the standard requirements of Zoning and Development Regulations.

If a dumpster is added to the site the dumpster is to have masonry screening.

No fence is to be within a front building line.

All exterior lighting shall be shielded and not encroach onto neighboring properties.

Provide/stripe 17 parking spaces on the existing asphalt. Show on site plan with dimensions and aisle
widths.

o Ao o

5. Meet the requirements of the Master Street Plan.

6. Meet the requirements of the Screening and Landscaping ordinance, including:

a. All disturbed areas are to be sodded, fertilized, watered and mulched.

b. Provide automated underground irrigation to all required trees and shrubs.

c. Provide 4 street trees 30” on center along E Broadway.

d. Provide 3 parking lot shade trees. Parking lot shade trees must be located within the parking lot or a
maximum distance of 10 from the edge of the parking lot.

e. Provide a continuous screen of shrubs for any landscape strip adjacent to any parking area. Shrubs
shall be 18’ in height at planting and be planted a maximum 3’ apart.

f.  Ground cover, grass, or mulch of shredded bark or stone shall be applied in all landscaped areas to
reduce moisture loss and to improve the appearance of plantings near streets.

g. Provide 6’ front yard landscape strip between property line and paving.

h. Provide 4’ side yard landscape strip between property line and paving.

7. Meet the following requirements concerning signage:
a. All signs require a permit and separate review.

8. Meet the requirements of the Fire Marshal, including:
a. Provide an approved fire protection plan.
b. Meet the requirements of the 2012 Arkansas Fire Prevention Code including:
i. Group S-1 storage facilities used for the repair of commercial trucks or buses where the fire
area exceeds 5000 square feet shall be equipped with an automatic fire sprinkler system.
(Volume 2 Section 903.2.9.1)
ii. A group F-1 occupancy used for the manufacture of upholstered furniture or mattresses
exceeds 2,500 square feet shall be equipped with an automatic fire sprinkler system. (Volume
2 Section 903.2.4)



Page 2 of 2
SD2022-48 - East Broadway Addition Lot 1 SPR

iii. A group F-1 occupancy exceeding 2,500 square feet containing woodworking operations that
generate sawdust shall be equipped with an automatic fire sprinkler system. (Volume 2 Section
903.2.4.1)

iv. Structures where the area for storage of tires exceeds 20,000 cubic feet shall be equipped
throughout with an automatic sprinkler system. (Volume 2 Section 903.2.9.2)

9. Meet the requirements of CAW, including:

a.

b.

All Central Arkansas Water requirements in effect at the time of request for water service must be
met.

Submit plans for water facilities and/or fire protection system to Central Arkansas Water for review.
Plan revisions may be required after additional review.

Contact Central Arkansas Water regarding procedures for installation of water facilities and/or fire
service. Approval of plans by the Arkansas Department of Health Engineering Division and North
Little Rock Fire Department is required.

Due to the nature of this facility, installation of an approved reduced pressure zone backflow
preventer assembly (RPZ) is required on the domestic water service. This assembly must be
installed prior to the first point of use. Central Arkansas Water (CAW) requires that upon
installation of the RPZA, successful tests of the assembly must be completed by a Certified
Assembly Tester licensed by the State of Arkansas and approved by CAW. The test results must be
sent to CAW's Cross Connection Section within ten days of installation and annually thereafter.
Contact the Cross Connection Section at 377-1226 if you would like to discuss backflow prevention
requirements for this project.

10. Meet the requirements of NLR Wastewater, including:

a.

Submit a full set of sanitary sewer plans to NLRW for review and approval prior to construction.

11. Meet the requirements of NLR Electric.

12. Meet the requirements of Rock Region Metro.



SD2022-49 - WalMart Commercial Addition, Lot 11 (SPR for a new coffee shop at 11921 Maumelle Blvd)

1. Engineering requirements on detention:
a. Option to pay the drainage in-lieu of fee of $5000/acre instead of providing onsite detention.

2. Permit requirements/approvals submitted before a building permit will be issued:
a. A signed and recorded plat must be on file with the Planning Department.
b. Provide CNLR Grading Permit application to City Engineer with grading plans.
c. Provide CNLR Stormwater Permit application to City Engineer with half size erosion control plan
showing silt fence, storm inlet protection, and drainage details.

3. Meet the requirements of the City Engineer.

4. Meet the requirements of Community Planning, including:
a. Provide the standard requirements of Zoning and Development Regulations.
b. Provide a note on the site plan the dumpster is to have masonry screening.
c. All exterior lighting shall be shielded and not encroach onto neighboring properties.

5. Meet the requirements of the Screening and Landscaping ordinance, including:

Provide a landscape plan for the site development.

All disturbed areas are to be sodded, fertilized, watered and mulched.

Provide automated underground irrigation to all required trees and shrubs.

Provide10 street trees along Maumelle Blvd.

Maintain the existing landscaping/shrub plantings along Maumelle Blvd. Show on dwg.

Provide 4 street trees along Crystal Hill Rd.

Provide plantings around the proposed dumpster to soften the visibility from Maumelle Blvd.

Provide 3 parking lot shade trees. Parking lot shade trees must be located within the parking lot or a

maximum distance of 10’ from the edge of the parking lot.

Provide a continuous screen of shrubs for any landscape strip adjacent to any parking area. Shrubs

shall be 18” in height at planting and be planted a maximum 3’ apart.

j.  Provide plantings/shrubs along the paved areas/drive on Crystal Hill Rd in the areas car headlights
will be projecting on the Maumelle Blvd and Crystal Hill Rd.

k. Ground cover, grass, or mulch of shredded bark or stone shall be applied in all landscaped areas to
reduce moisture loss and to improve the appearance of plantings near streets.

1. Provide 6’ front yard landscape strip between property line and paving abutting rights of way.

m. Provide 4’ side yard landscape strip between property line and paving.

SR a0 o p

[

6. Meet the following requirements concerning signage:
a. Provide the location of the proposed sign on the site plan.
b. All signs require a permit and separate review.

7. Meet the requirements of the Fire Marshal, including:
a. Provide an approved fire protection plan.
b. Meet the requirements of the 2012 Arkansas Fire Prevention Code.
c. Fire apparatus access roads will support 85,000 Ibs. (NLR Ordinance 9267)

8. Meet the requirements of CAW, including:
a. All Central Arkansas Water requirements in effect at the time of request for water service must be

met.



Page 2 of 2
SD2022-49 - WalMart Commercial Addition Lot 11 SPR

b. Submit plans for water facilities and/or fire protection system to Central Arkansas Water for review.
Plan revisions may be required after additional review.

c. Contact Central Arkansas Water regarding procedures for installation of water facilities and/or fire
service. Approval of plans by the Arkansas Department of Health Engineering Division and North
Little Rock Fire Department is required.

d. Due to the nature of this facility, installation of an approved reduced pressure zone backflow
preventer assembly (RPZ) is required on the domestic water service. This assembly must be
installed prior to the first point of use. Central Arkansas Water (CAW) requires that upon
installation of the RPZA, successful tests of the assembly must be completed by a Certified
Assembly Tester licensed by the State of Arkansas and approved by CAW. The test results must be
sent to CAW's Cross Connection Section within ten days of installation and annually thereafter.
Contact the Cross Connection Section at 377-1226 if you would like to discuss backflow prevention
requirements for this project.

e. Provide a 10-ft utility easement along Maumelle Blvd and Crystal Hill Rd road frontages.

9. Meet the requirements of NLR Wastewater, including:
a. Grease Interceptor required if food will be prepared and sold.
b. Submit a full set of sanitary sewer plans to NLRW for review and approval prior to construction

10. Meet the requirements of NLR Electric.

11. Meet the requirements of Rock Region Metro.



Special Use #2022-09
August 9, 2022

Request: to allow a communications tower in a C3 zone

Location of the Request: 4500 W Commercial Dr, NLR, AR

Applicant: Integrisite, Inc.
Owner: First Assembly of God North Little Rock

P.C. Background: 1* time on the agenda

Site Characteristics: The site is the office complex for the NLR First Assembly of God Church.
The church sanctuary is located across Burrow Drive to the west of the office facilities. The
Communications tower is proposed in the southeast portion of the property adjacent to the Comfort
Inn and Suite. Adjacent to the site to the east are multiple office uses.

Master Street Plan: W Commerce Drive is a commercial street. There are no dedicated bike routes
within this area.

Surrounding Uses and Zoning

Direction | Surrounding Zoning Surrounding Uses
North C3 Office uses

South | C3 & R4 Hotel and Multi Family
East C3 Office uses

West C3 & R2 Church Sanctuary

Background:

1. Compatible with previous actions? Yes, the City has allowed communications towers in
areas where impacts are minimized.

2. Neighborhood Position/Comment? None at time of printing.

3. Effect on public service and utilities? Minimal.

4. Legal Consideration/Reasonableness? The request is reasonable.

5. Will the approval have a stabilizing effect on surrounding properties? The placement of
the tower should have minimal impact on the surrounding properties.

6. Is the site of adequate size for the development? Yes, the site proposed complies with the
minimum lease parcel size for a communication tower per the zoning ordinance.

7. Will this set a precedent for future rezoning? No.

8. Should a different zoning classification be requested? No, the Land Use Plan does not
support a rezoning. A Special Use request is appropriate.

Summary: The applicant is proposing to place a communications tower on the property. The
tower is proposed meeting the minimum criteria for the placement of a communications tower



Special Use #2022-09
August 9, 2022
Page 2 of 2

including the height of the tower and the total lease parcel space. Along with the request for the
Special Use, the applicant is seeking approval by the Planning Commission for a site plan to allow
the construction of the communications tower once the Special Use is approved by the City Council.
The tower is proposed with a maximum height of 75-feet. The total lease space proposed is 46.63-
feet by 121-feet (5642 square feet).

Design Review Committee and Design Review Committee Recommendation: The applicant met

with the Design Review Committee on July 20, 2022. The Committee recommended approval with
conditions.

Conditions to Consider:

1.

™

SRR

10.

Meet the requirements of the Site Plan Review.

Multiple blinking lights be located on top of the tower to operate 24-hours per day, 7-days per
week and 365-days per year.

The tower shall be located on a platted lot not less than 5,625 square feet.

A letter from the FAA approving the tower height and location.

The tower be of monopole type only.

All abandoned or unused towers and associated facilities shall be removed within 12-months
of the cessation of operations at the site. In the event that a tower is not removed within 12
months of the cessation of operations at a site, the tower and associated facilities may be
removed by the City and the costs of removal assessed against the property.

The placement of a fence around the communication tower site a minimum of 6-feet in height.
A planted buffer with a minimum depth of 10-feet with plant materials to reach a height of
20-feet at maturity is required around the exterior perimeter of the fence.

Any structures located on the lot shall meet all applicable Federal, State, County, and City
requirements and codes.

Business license holder understands that failure to comply with these conditions may result in
loss of the Special Use and/or loss of Business License and/or removal of Electric Power
Meter.



< PARKSTONE CIR

=" W COMMERCIALDR

" BUNKER HICL DR

N

e GMCCAIN PARK DR

' Special Use 2022-09
4500 W. Commercial Dr.

To allow a communication
tower in a C3 zone.

e WGCAIN PARK DR™ =

C3

1 inch = 200 feet

N I R

400 Feet

0
Date: 7/13/2022 Not an actual survey




_p—
=
NE:CIR =

s =ﬁ=-¢-(l_,1a-:-—

PARKSTON

o
L -

h,:’_);.;i:ﬂ-h]:: -

~ W COMMERGIAL DR

Wil e

BURROWDR.

-

-

MCCAIN PARK DR

R Gl

@i‘thO 1 inch = 75 feet

0 . 75 150 Feet
Date: 7/27/2022 Not an actual survey




30" INGRESS/EGRESS &
UTILITY EASEMENT

EXISTING 10’ UTILITY AND
DRAINAGE EASEMENT

LOT 78 BLOCK 2
WEST COMMERCIAL SUBDIVISION
FIRST ASSEMBLY OF GOD NORTH LITTLE
ROCK AR INC
2017065138

e i rrred

Lot

LT/ ARKING

ASPHA

ROPOSED.

ACLESS MO

wmury

PASEAENT

b N

¥ ORAY

LOT 7C
BLOCK 2
WEST COMMERCIAL
SUBDIVISION

FIRST ASSEMBLY OF

GOD NORTH LITTLE

DEED

D.RP.C.A
PARCEL ID
23NGT0100700

I@ /2" PIPE
l
|
l

ROCK AR INC
o |

e EXISTING
PROPERTY LINE
COMMERCIAL DRIVE

REALTY, INC.

f
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|

PARCEL ID
PROPOSED 36°X111" FENCED
COMPOUND AND 46 X121" LEASE

.

j R
SAN - <SAN /AN

<

PROPOSED 75’ MONOP(
RE: 1/A3

v
/ /7 EXISTING

PROPERTY LINE

PROPOSEJ FIBER UINE

TO ROW

EXISTING POWER
POLE

PROPOSED FIBER HAND
HOLE © ROW

INVESTMENT,

ANDY AND ANDREW
LLC

EXISTING OVERHEAD
POWER LINES, TYP.




SD 2022-50 - West Commercial Subdivision, Lot 7B, Block 2 (SPR for a communications tower at 4500
W Commercial Drive)

1.

Provide City Council ordinance approving a Special Use allowing a communication tower in a C3 zone,
before a building permit will be issued.

Permit requirements/approvals submitted before a building permit will be issued:
a. Provide CNLR Stormwater Permit application to City Engineer with half size erosion control plan.

Meet the requirements of the City Engineer.

Permit requirements/approvals submitted before a building permit will be issued:
a. A signed and recorded plat must be on file with the Planning Department.

Meet the requirements of Community Planning, including:

Provide the standard requirements of Zoning and Development Regulations.

The tower shall be located on a platted lot not less than 5,625 square feet.

Barbwire fencing is not allowed.

Fabric material or vinyl slats as a fence is not permitted.

Show type of fence and height of fence.

All accessory structures and buildings shall be placed within a fenced area and at least 15° feet from
any fence.

g. All exterior lighting shall be shielded and not encroach onto neighboring properties.

o Ao o

Meet the requirements of the Screening and Landscaping ordinance, including:

All disturbed areas are to be sodded, fertilized, watered and mulched.

Provide automated underground irrigation to all required trees and shrubs.

The tower to be located within a fenced area. Fence to be a solid opaque fence (wood) 6 in height.
A planted buffer with a minimum depth of 10* with plant materials to reach a height of 20 at
maturity shall be required around the exterior perimeter of the fence.

po o

Meet the following requirements concerning signage:
a. All signs require a permit and separate review.

Meet the requirements of the Fire Marshal, including:
a. Provide an approved fire protection plan.

Meet the requirements of CAW, including:

a. All Central Arkansas Water requirements in effect at the time of request for water service must be
met.

b. Submit plans for water facilities and/or fire protection system to Central Arkansas Water for review.
Plan revisions may be required after additional review.

¢. Contact Central Arkansas Water regarding procedures for installation of water facilities and/or fire
service. Approval of plans by the Arkansas Department of Health Engineering Division and North
Little Rock Fire Department is required.

d. Due to the nature of this facility, installation of an approved reduced pressure zone backflow
preventer assembly (RPZ) is required on the domestic water service. This assembly must be
installed prior to the first point of use. Central Arkansas Water (CAW) requires that upon
installation of the RPZA, successful tests of the assembly must be completed by a Certified



Page 2 of 2
SD 2022-50 - West Commercial Subdivision, Lot 7B, Block 2 SPR

Assembly Tester licensed by the State of Arkansas and approved by CAW. The test results must be
sent to CAW's Cross Connection Section within ten days of installation and annually thereafter.
Contact the Cross Connection Section at 377-1226 if you would like to discuss backflow prevention
requirements for this project.

10. Meet the requirements of NLR Wastewater.

11. Meet the requirements of NLR Electric.

12. Meet the requirements of Rock Region Metro.



SD2022-51 - Central Arkansas I-440 Business Park, Lot 7 (SPR for an addition to an existing building 900
Fiber Optic Dr)

1. Engineering requirements on detention:
a. Pay the drainage in-lieu fee of $5000/acre for the increase of impervious surfaces. (roof tops/parking)

2. Permit requirements/approvals submitted before a building permit will be issued:
a. Provide CNLR Stormwater Permit application to City Engineer with half size erosion control plan
showing silt fence, storm inlet protection and drainage details.
b. Provide the required landscaping along Fiber Optic Dr as required by the previous approval (SD2018-
16 — April 10, 2018) or a bond before a permit will be issued.

3. Meet the requirements of the City Engineer.

4. Meet the requirements of Community Planning, including:

Provide the standard requirements of Zoning and Development Regulations.
Provide dumpster location.

Dumpster to have masonry screening.

Allow existing fence within a front building line.

All exterior lighting shall be shielded and not encroach onto neighboring properties.

oan o

5. Meet the requirements of the Master Street Plan, including:
a. Sidewalks not required due to location within an industrial subdivision.

6. Meet the requirements of the Screening and Landscaping ordinance, including:
a. Provide the required landscaping along Fiber Optic Dr as required by the previous approval
(SD2018-16 ~ April 10, 2018).
b. All disturbed areas are to be sodded, fertilized, watered and mulched.

7. Meet the following requirements concerning signage:
a. All signs require a permit and separate review.

8. Meet the requirements of the Fire Marshal, including:

a. Provide an approved fire protection plan.

b. Group S-1 storage facilities with fire areas exceeding 12,000 square feet shall be equipped with
an automatic fire sprinkler system. (Volume 2 Section 903.2.9)

c. Group S-1 storage facilities used for the repair of commercial trucks or buses where the fire area
exceeds 5000 square feet shall be have an automatic fire sprinkler system. (Volume 2 Section
903.2.9.1)

d. Buildings used for the storage of commercial trucks or buses where the fire area exceeds 5000
square feet shall be have an automatic fire sprinkler system. (Volume 2 Section 903.2.10.1)
Shall meet the required 250 foot exit access travel distance. (Volume 2 Section 1016)
Emergency lighting. (Volume 1 Section 1006)

Approved exit sign. (Volume 1 Section 1011)

Fire Apparatus access roads shall have an unobstructed width of not less than 20 feet. (Volume 1
Section 503.2.1)

Gates securing fire apparatus access roads will have a minimum width of 20 feet. (Volume 1

Appendix D 103.5)

5 g th o

—



Page 2 of 2
SD2022-51 - Central Arkansas [-440 Business Park Lot 7 SPR

j.  Fire Apparatus access roads shall extend to within 150 feet of all portions of the exterior walls of
the first story of the building. (Volume 1 Section 503.1.1)

k. Dead end roads in excess of 150 feet shall be provided with width and turnaround provisions in
accordance with Table D103.4. (Volume 1 Appendix D103.4)

9. Meet the requirements of CAW.
10. Meet the requirements of NLR Wastewater.
11. Meet the requirements of NLR Electric.

12. Meet the requirements of Rock Region Metro.



Conditional Use # 2022-10
August 9, 2022

Request: to allow an afterschool program in a C4 zone

Location of the Request: 5301 McClanahan Drive, Suite B1, North Little Rock, AR

Applicant:  Walter Sims

Owner: General Properties Inc.

P.C. Background: 1% time on the agenda

Site Characteristics: The site is developed as an office/warehouse development with a number of

tenants and various type tenant uses.

Master Street Plan: The site is located adjacent to a commercial street. There are no dedicated bike

lanes in this area.

Surrounding Uses and Zoning

Direction Surrounding Zoning Surrounding Uses

North Not zoned City of Sherwood

South C4 Office/Warehouse

East I1 Office/Warehouse
| West R1 Single Family

Background:

1. Compatible with previous actions? Daycares have been approved in similar type
developments and in strip shopping centers within the city.

2. Neighborhood Position/Comment? No comment at the time of this writing.

3. Effect on public service and utilities? Minimal.

4, Legal Consideration/Reasonableness? The request is a reasonable request.

5. Will the approval have a stabilizing effect on surrounding properties? The approval will
have minimal impact on the surrounding properties. The residential uses are to the west of
this site and there is no access from this site to the residential properties.

6. Is the site of adequate size for the development? The size of the site is adequate to
accommodate the use.

7. Will this set a precedent for future rezoning? The zoning will remain unchanged.

8. Should a difference zoning classification be requested? No, a Conditional Use will allow
the afterschool/daycare as proposed.

Summary: The applicant is seeking a Conditional Use to allow the use of the property as an

afterschool/daycare program licensed through the Department of Human Services, (DHS). The
applicant has indicated the daycare center will serve a maximum of 25 children ages 12 — 17. The



Conditional Use # 2022-10
August 9, 2022
Page 2 of 2

site will not have an outdoor play area but will have an indoor activity room, workshop area and
training classrooms for a careers and readiness program for career preparation. Career readiness
involves three major skill areas: core academic skills and the ability to apply those skills to concrete
situations in order to function in the workplace and in routine daily activities; employability skills
(such as critical thinking and responsibility) that are essential in any career area; and technical, job-
specific skills related to a specific career pathway.

The days and hours of operation proposed are from 8 am to 8 pm Monday through Friday and on
Saturday, from 8 am to 8 pm for special programs such as field trips, mentoring and tutoring as
needed.

Design Review Committee and Design Review Committee Recommendation: The applicant met
with the Design Review Committee on July 20, 2022. The Committee recommended approval with
conditions.

Conditions to Consider:

1. Hours of operation from 8 am to 8 pm Monday through Saturday.

2. Meet the minimum requirements of DHS for the number of children to be served and
provide the required child to staff ratio as required by DHS.

3. Meet DHS requirement for recreational activities.

4. Applicant shall meet all applicable Federal, State, County, and City requirements.

5. All daycare centers/home daycares shall perform a sex offender residence check through the

NLR Police Department according to their rules and procedures, to determine if a Level 3 or

Level 4 registered sex offender resides within 2,000 feet of the proposed site for the daycare

center/home daycare facility.

Business license to be issued after Planning Staff confirmation of requirements.

Applicant/owner understands that failure to comply with these conditions may result in loss

of the Conditional Use and/or loss of Business License and/or removal of Electric Power

Meter.

~ o



@md m@nal Use,, " 2@224 Q

_LM.Z' G

SILVER /ER CREEK DI nn
!!‘-

E §
0 =

GROSSBOW.CT

\s\;{N—oﬂs‘qﬂ 15

i\l 5301 McClanahan Dr. B1

!! To allow an after school program.

====MCKEECIR; _ _

1 inch = 200 feet

100 200 400 Feet

Date: 6/15/2022 Map is not to survey accuracy




Conditional Use # 2022-10

-

Unit location.

1 inch = 100 feet

T T T 1
0 50 100 200 Feet

Date: 7/27/2022 Map is not to survey accuracy




